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CAMPANOLOGICAL EDUCATION.

In some recent articles we have pointed out a direction
in which, we believe, something might be done to enlighten
the public in regard to matters campanological, and thus
secure a wider and more intelligent interest in the doings
of ringers among those outside. At the same time, there
is, as we have suggested, another field in which the efforts

of the Central Council and the various associations might
find a useful outlet, and that is among ringers themselves.
The county and diocesan organisations have for many
years pursued a steady and successful campaign which
has resulted in the elimination of abuses from the belfry,
improving the status of the ringer in his relation with the
church authorities, and raising generally the standard of
ringing. These things, everyone whose knowledge of
belfries goes back over any lengthy period, must readily
acknowledge. Th;re has been a great transformation in
the last forty years, but this does not mean that nothing
further can be done.

In these days of high pressure, the man who does not
go on is sure to go under, and the same principle will
apply to those associations who are content to stand still.
Frequent and well-attended meetings are an excellent sign
of life in a society, but these ought not to be the end of
an organisation's activities. Meetings create interest and
enthusiasm in those who are able to attend them, but for
every ringer who is able to take part in a meeting th.re
are probably four or five who are unable, or, worse still,
disinclined, to do so. Combined practices among small
groups of towers, such as are very successfully carried on
in some districts, are of immense benefit in reaching those
who do not find opportunity to get to the larger meetings.
Indeed, the probability is that associations which are now
divided into larger districts would do even better if they
enlarged their devolution machineiyand further subdivided
their areas.

But, apart from this, there is another direction in which
associations might make their influence felt and extend
their value to their members. Why could not instructional
lectures be given, either in towers or in some convenient
centre for a group of towers ? Tht*e lectures could cover
a wide field and, in the hands of a competent man, could
be made extremely attractive. They could be made
interesting as well as educational; they could touch the
historical and antiquarian side of bells as well as the
practical and scientific. They would, we are certain,
increase interest and raise the aspirations of those already
in touch with the Exercise, and, planned on the right lines,

(iContinued on Htxt t aSe-)
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BELLS!BELLS! BELLS!

Let the Music of the Bells celebrate Peace.

vesss CHARLES CARR 1t

The OLD-ESTABLISHED firm of Bellfounders,

are now prepared to execute orders for all
kinds of Bells, singly or in rings. Their
foundry is equipped with every modern
appliance for the manufacture of Bells of any
size, weight or note, all their Bells being
moulded and cast on scientific principles;
while their knowledge of the ‘Chemistry
of Metals’ enables them to produce that fine
quality of Tone so much desired by all
lovers of Bell Music.

In their finishing and fitting shops they have installed the
most lup-to-date’ Tools and Machinery for the making
of Bell Frames and Fittings, so that they are in a
position to carry out the complete installation
of Peals of Bells for Churches, or Sets
of Chimes for Public Clocks, etc.

BPECIAL ATTENTION G1YEN TO THE RECASTING AND
REHANQINO OF EXISTING PEALS.

Orders may be placed now for delivery at a
future date to suit the convenience of clients.

hLL MATERIALS CHEMICALLY AND MECHANICALLY TESTED.
Catalogue and Book of Testimonials post free on application.

THE WOODLANDS BELL
AND BRASS FOUNDRY,

SMETHWICK, BIRMINGHAM,

ESTABLISHED 1760.

JOHN NICOLL,

Church Bell Rope and Clock Rope
Manufacturer.

60, QUEENS ROAD, PECKHAM, LONDON, S.E.

(Two minutes from Queen’s Road Station, L.B.& S.C. Railway),
Late 13 Keeton's Road, Bermondsey.

Makers to St.Paul's Cathedral, Westminster Abbey, Imperial Institute,

Canterbury, Edinburgh, St. Albans, Lincoln, Durham, Peterborough,

Melbourne, (Australia), Rochester, Dublin, St. Patrick's, Manchester,
and Worcester Cathedrali, etc., etc.
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fContinued from page 345.)
might do much to increase the general competency and
knowledge cf ringers. The scheme could well be launched
by the central Council and carried through by the local
associations much in the same way as University Exten-
sion Lectures are run, and we throw out this as a further
suggestion to all concerned for their serious consideration.

PEACE PEALS.

TEN BELL PEALS.

NEWPORT, MONMOUTHSHIRE.
THE LLANDAFF DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday, August 2, 1919, in Three Hours and Twenty-Three Minutes,
At the Chdrch of St. Woolos,

A PEAL OF ORAHDS8IRE OATERS8, S003 CHANCES;
Tenor 21 cwt. 2 qr. 20 Ib.

Joseph E. Sykes ... Frtble  Wittiam C. Jonhs ... 6
<Harry Morgan... 2. Frederick Chamberlain 7
Fred Atwell .eveeeenene. 3 W illiam Bolton . 8
Gordon W. Checketts... n eJames Pippin ... 9
John W. Jonhs.......e. 5 George Popwell ...Tenor

Composed by George Hollis.
Conducted by Joseph E. Sykes.
* First peal on ten beils. First peal of Caters on the bells.
Arranged and rang specially to celebrate the signing of the Treaty
of Peace.
OXFORD.
THB OXFORD SOdHFT.

On Saturday, August 9, 1919, in Three Hours and Thirty-om Minutes,
At Magdalen College, Oxford,

A PEAL OF STEDMAN OATER8, 6070 CHANCES;
Tenor 20 cwt.

S. Hounslow ...TrebU V. Bennett G
A. Hawes ... .2 G. Holifield; sen. 7
W. J. Smith.. 3 T. Payne i, 8
W . Finch .. 4 R. Congrbve-Fridghon ... g
W. H. B. Wilkins 5 R. Plaister ... Tenor

Conducted by R. Congreve-Pridgeon.

Rung to commemorate the signing of Peace at the with of Sir
Herbert Warren, K.C.V.O., President of the College. The first peal
on tbe bells since Aug. 23rd, 1875. The ringers all wish to thank
the President and Fellows for the privilege of ringing a peal oa the
college bells.

EIGHT BELL PEALS.
EPSOM, SURREY.
THE SURREY ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, August 2, 1919, in Three Hours,
At Christ Church,
A PEAL OF CRAHDSIRE TRIPLE8, 6040 CHANCES |

Shipway's ten-part.

Frawk Oakshott... ..TrebU Edward T. Grove ....... 5
Alfred Brown ... 2 William H. Corbett ... 6
W illiam G. Grove — 3 Charles E. Read  ....... 7
Thomas Miles ... 4 W illiam Poplett  ....... Tenor

Conducted by Charles E. Read.

Rung to commemorate the victorious conclusion of the Great War
and signing of the terms of Peace.

FLIXTON.
THB LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.
(Manchester Branch.)
On Monday, August 4, 1919, in Two Hours and Fifty-One Minutes,
At the Church of St. Michael,
A PEAL OF 8TEDMAN TRIPLE8, 5040 CHANCES;

Tenor 16 cwt.

James Shaw Treble

J. W. W ashbrook, sen. ese 5
George Turner... 2 Richard F. Deal i e B
J. W. W ashbrook, jun. ... j Harry Chapman 7
Rev, A. T. Beeston........... 4 Amos T rippier ... .. Tenor

Composed and Conducted by James W. Washbkook, Senr.

First peal of Stedman Triples on the bells and rung as a Peace
celebration peal.
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BEUKHAMSTEAD HERTS.
THE HERTFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Monday, August 4, 1919, in Two Hours and Fifty-Eight Minutes,

At the Chorch of St. Peter,
- A PEAL OF CRAHDSIKE TRIPLE8, 5040 CHAHCES;
Grove's Variation of Parker's Twelve-part. Tenor 18} cwt.
Edward P. D uffield ...Treble Horace H. Smith .. 5
Oowen W. Bayes... . o 2 W illiam C. Duffield ... 6
Frederick J Reeve . .. 3 Arthur E. Sharman 7
Edmund]. Hobbs . ... 4 ‘Ernest W. Smith ... Tenor
Conducted by Arthur E. Sharman.
* First peal. Rung as a victory peal for the above parish.
n'TYLDEBLEY, LANCASHIRE.
THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.
(Bolton Branch.)
On Tuesday, August 5, 1919, in Two Hours and Fifty-Two Minutes,
At the Parish Church of St. George,
A PEAL OF CRAHDSIRE TRIPLE8, 5040 CHANCES |
Taylor's Six-part. Tenor nj cwt. in G.
Hugh W atts .Treble W ittiam Hindley 5
Harry Allred 2 John Potter 6
John T. A llred .. 3 Robert Allred . 7
Herbert Allred John Hampson .. Tenor

Conducted by John Potter.

Rung as a Peace peal for Tyldesley, and also as a welcome home
to the ringer of the 4th, now demobilised.

PORTLSHBAD, SOMERSET.
THE BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday, August 9, 1919, in Two Hours and Fifty-four Minutes,
At the Church of St. Peter,
A PEAL OF CRAHDSIRE TRIPLE8, 5040 CHANCES;

Parker's Twelve-part. Tenor 16 cwt.

‘Miss Violet Crocker ..Treble James Nisbet ... 5
Miss N ellie Gillingham 2 fMiss Edith M. Hole 6
Ernest J. Goldstone ... 3 W illiam Gillingham 7
Miss Mabel C. N. Jukes 4 W alter S. W atts ...Tenor

Conducted by Miss E. M. Hole.

* First peal, f First peal as Conductor. This peal was rung to
commemorate the termination of the Great War.

WITNEY, OXON.
THE OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.

(W itney and W oodstock Deaneries Branch.)
On Saturday, August 9, 1919, in Three Hours and Twelve Minutes,
At the Church of St.
A PEAL OF CRAHDSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;
Tenor 18 cwt. 1 qr. 6 Ib.

Mary,

Taylor's Six-part.

Rev. R. L. C. Newhousb.. Treble Christopher R. Walker... 5
Mark W oodhouse 2 John Mo n k . 6
Frederick Webb 3 Thomas B ull w7
Noble Spindlow ... 4 George Brooks.. .. Tenor

Conducted by John Monk.

This peal was rung at the request of Mr. F. M. Green, Rector’s
Churchwarden, who has promised a peal board to record it.

SIX BELL PEALS.
WOLVERLBY, WORCESTERSHIRE.
THE WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday, August 2, 1919, in Two Hours and Forty-Five Minutes,
At the Church of St. John the Baptist,
A PEAL OF CRAHDSIRE DOUBLES, 5040 CHAHCES;
Forty-two six-scores, 10 different callings. Tenor 13 cwt.

Francis S. Shaw ..Treble W itrtiam Short 4
Thomas J. Salter 2 Robert Mattbew$ 5
John Bass . 3 Alfred Morris

Conducted by w illiam Short.
Rung in celebration of Peace.
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GLINTON, NORTHAMPTONSHIRE.
PETERBOROUGH AND DLSTRICT ASSOCIATION.

On Tuesday, August 5, 1919, in Threi Hours and Eighteen Minutes,
At the Church of St.

A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHANCES;
Being two 720's each of Oxford and Kent Treble Bob and two of

Benedict,

Plain Bob. Tenor 16J cwt.
Tom Tebbutt  ....... -...Treble John J. Jutson ..eeeeee - 4
Kathleen A. Jutson........ 2 Frank Rawlinson .. 5
Rev. C. J. Sturton ... 3 Arthur MacKears ...Tenor

Conducted by Arthur MacKears.

This peal was rung as a special Peace peal at the request of the
Rector (Rev. F. Almond), who, at its close, kindly entertained the
band to a sumptuous tea in the Rectory. Great credit is due to the
ringer of the second for the splendid w?y in which she struck her
bell throughout. This is believed to be the first peal on the bells
since the year 1854.

TEN BELL PEALS.

BRISTOL.

GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Tuesday, July 29, 1919, in Three Hours and Nineteen Minutes,
At the Church of St. Stephen the Martyr,

A PEAL OF CAMBRIOCE SURPRISE ROYAL, 5040 CHANCES;
Tenor 21 cwt.

Raymond J. W ilkins... ..Treble W ittiam Knight........ 6
Alfred Reaves 2 George Condick, sen. 7
Alfred W inch .. 3 Henry Pring .. 8
George Condick, jun. .. 4 John A. Burford .9
Ernest Davis .ot 5 Wiilliam A. Cave ...Tenor

Composed andmConducted by J. A. Burford.

A. Winch hails from Leatherhead, Surrey; E.
Gloucester.

Davis from

BRIGHTON, SUSSEX.
THE SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday, August 2, 1919, in Three Hours and Ten Minutes,
At the Church of St. Nicholas,
OF STEDMAN CATER8, 6043 CHANCIS|

Tenor i6j cwt.

A PEAL

John T. Rickman ...Treble Aifred Cripps 6
Albert D. Stone e 2 Robert J. Dawe.. 7
Richard Stredwick ... ... 3 John Jay . .. 8
William Watts....... .. 4 Keith Hart.. 9
Charles Palmer ... ... 5 William Stenning ..Tenor
Composed by John Carter.
Conducted by Keith Hart.
EIGHT BELL PEALS.
HAGBOURNE, berks.
THE OXFORD DIOCBSAN GUILD.
On Wednesday, July 30, 1919, in Three Hours and Seven Minutes,
At the Church of St. Andrew,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLE8, 5040 CHANCES;
Thurstans’ Four-part. Tenor 231 cwt.
flames Butler .. Treble | Cpl. John Dearlove ... 5
Thomas East, Senr 2 Richard T. Hibbert ... 6
«Thomas East, Junr... 3 Rev. CyrilW.O.Jenkyn 7
Herbert Langdon 4 W illiam Goowhovgh...Tenor

Conducted by Herbert Langdon.

* First peal, f First peal in the method. Cpl. John Dearlovs
belongs to the Canadian Engineers.

“amewes THE RINGING -
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THE ESSEX ASSOCIATION.
HORINUHURCH, ESSEX.

On Saturday, August 2, 1919, in Three Hours and Twelve Minutes,
At the Chdrch of St. Andrew,
A PIAL OF LONDON 8URPRISE MAJOR, 5024 CHANCES ;
Tenor 19$ cwt.

Wesley Watson......ooeeevvnennnns Treble

Alfred Pye . 5
Gborge R. Py e .. 2 eArthcr Mason
Isaac G. Shade 3 Albert W. Coles

Ernest J. Butler

. 4 William Pye
Composed by Gabriel Lindoff.
Conducted by william Pye.

First peal in the method.

THB MIDLAND COUNTIES ASSOCIATION.
BOLSOVER, DERBYSHIRE.
On Saturday, August 2, 1919, in Three Hours and One Minute,
At the Parish Chorch,

A PEAL OF DOUBLE NORWICH COURT BOB MAJOR, 5088 CHAHCES;
Tenor 147 cwt.

Jf.sseJ.Moss ....Treble Charles Mason ... .. s
Wiilliam Lambert 2 Thomas Bettison . 6
W alter Allwood ... 3 Thomas Rilby e 7
Edward Robbins ... 4 John Flint ... ...Tenor

Composed by Arthor Knights.
Conducted by John Flint.

MILVERTON, SOMERSET.
THE BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday, August 2, 1919, in Three Hours and Three Minutes,
At thb Chorch of St. Michael,

A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5088 CHANCES;
Tenor 20 cwt.
W illiam W hite . ...Treble Edward Lloyd 5
Alfred W yatt . e 2 Joseph M addock.... . C
Frank Millard . . 3 W alter Farley ..cocoeeeenennns 7
Frank Bennett . .. 4 James HonNt...oiiiiininnennnnnn, Tenor

Composed by G. Cross.
Conducted by Frank Bbnnbtt.

Fiftieth peal by W. Farley, and first peal of Major on the bells.
Arranged for Mr. Frank Bennett, of Brighton.

SIX BELL PEALS.

ALDEBURGH,SUFFOLK.
THE NORWICH DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.

Ok Saturday, July 26, 1919, in Two Hours and Forty-light Minutes,
At the Chdbcb or SS. Peter and Paul,
A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHANCES;
Being two 720's of Oxford Bob, one 720 of Bob Minor, two 7afc's
each of Kent and Oxford Treble Bob, each called differently.
Tenor 12J) cwt.

"George Greenacre... ..Treble Fredbrick J. Smith 4
Albert J. L. Naunton ... 2 Albert J. Lincoln 5
Spr. F. W. Naonton ... 3 Norman R. Bailey ....Tenor

Conducted by Norman R. Bailey.
*  First peal.
leave from the Army of Occupation.

BELCHAMP ST. PAUL’S.
THE ESSEX ASSOCIATION.

On Sunday, July 27, 1919, in Two Hours and Fifty Minutes,
At St. Andrew's Church,
A PEAL OF MIHOR, 5040 CHAHCES;
Comprising 720 each of Cambridge Surprise, Woodbine, Oxford and
Kent Treble Bob, Double Court, Double Oxford and Plain Bob.
Tenor 11] cwt.

J. Harrington ...Treble E. Turnbr 4
H.Ccatterwell. 2 O. Broyd .3
H. Ccansell.. 3 G. E. Pannell Tenor

Conducted by O. Broyd.
First peal on the bells.
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WORCESTER CITY.

THE WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION.
On Monday, July 28, 1919, in Thiec Hours and Fiftctn Minutes,
At the Church of St. Swithon,

A PEAL OF TREBLE BOB MIHOR, 5040 CHANCES;
Being 2,520 changes each of Kent and Oxford Treble Bob.

Tenor 16 cwt.
Charles G. Bowkett

LTivW 2™ Villiam C. Jones  .eeee 4
Gordon W. Checketts 2 Herbert D ransfield ... b5
W ittiam Page ....... 3 1 Joseph E. Sykes.......... ...Tenor
Conducted by Joseph E. Sykes.
Rung in honour of the Signing of the Treaty of Peace. This was

the first peal on the bells which were cast in 1651, and the first peal of
Minor rung in Worcester on the eastern side ef the Severn. Mr.
Bowkett’s first peal on six bells.

WORCESTER CITY.
THE WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION.

On Thursday, July 31, 1919, in Two Hours and Fifty-One Minutes,
At the Church of St.

A PEAL OF MIHOR,

Being 720 of Oxford Bob Minor and two 720’s each of Oxford and
Kent Treble Bob and Plain Bob Minor.

Nicholas,

5040 CHANCES ;

W illiam Page Treble W itliam Lew is e, 4
W illiam Ranford 2 Gordon W. Checketts ... 5
W illiam C. Jones ... 3 Joseph E. SykesS.vevivernenns Tenor

Conducted by Joseph E. Sykes.

This peal was rung in honour of the Signing of the'Treaty of Peace,
and is the first peal ever rung on these bells, the oldest of which dates

from 1715.
HOUQIi-ON-THB-HILL, LINCOLNSHIRE.
THE LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.

On Thursday, July 31, 1919, in Three Hours and One Minute,

At the Chorch of All Saints,

A PEAL OF MIHOR, 5040 CHAHCES;

Being 720 each of Oxford Treble Bob, Kent Treble Bob. Double
and Single Court, Double and Single Oxford and Plain Bob.
Tenor 15 cwt.

John H. Haynes. ... Treble Ropert Richardson........... 4
Rbv.C. J. Sturton 2 Arthur MacKbars
John J. Jutson 3 W alter W hite
Conducted by w alter W hite.
Rung to celebrate the wedding of Mr. Dalby, of Harby, and Miss
Mitton, of Hough-on-the Hill, a ringer at the above tower.

DENNINGTON, SUFFOLK.
THB NORWICH DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Thursday, July 31, 1919, in Three Hours and Seventeen Minutes,

At the Church of St. Mary,

A PEAL OF BOB MINOR, 5040 CHANCES;

Seven 720’i differently called. Tenor 19] cwt.

W illiam Hollingsworth Treble Alfred W atson ... 4
«Victor E. Kerridgb e 2 George E. Symonds.......... 5
illiam J. G. Brown ... 3 James W ardley coooeeeiereerennnns Tenor

Conducted by George E. Symonds.
* First peal and firatxattempt.

BREMHILL. WILTS.
THE SALISBURY DIOOESAN GUILD.
On Saturday, August 2,1919, in Three Hours and Five Minutes,

At the Parish ChorCh of St. Martin,

A PEAL OF CRANDS8IRE DOUBLES, 5040 CHANCES;

Being 42 Six-scores. Tenor 20 cwt.

Ernest.Stevens Treble Joseph Slade
Thomas MerriTt 2 <James W alker

‘George Mortimer 3 "George Freegard
Conducted by J. Slade.
First peal as conductor. First peal on the belts.

First peal.
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WOODFORD, NOROTANTS.
THB CENTRAL NORTHAMPTONSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, August 2, 1919, in Three Hours,
Church,

At the Parish

A PEAL OF MINOR, S040 CHANCES;

Being 720 each of Woodbine, Oxford and Kent Treble Bob, each
called differently. Tenor 17 cwt.

eCyril Wilson Treble James N. Nickerson .4
Francis Batt 2 John Lewin . 5
(Leslie G room ..... Tenor

W ittliam J. Gilbert .3
Conducted by Leslie Groom.
*  First peal, f First peal as conductor, recently demobilised,
welcome home to the ringer of the 5th.

HANDBELL PEALS.

LAVBNHAM, SUFFOLK.
THB ELY AND ST. BOMUNDSBURY DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Wednesday, July 30, 1919, in One Hour and Fifty Minutes,
In the Tower,

A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHAHCES,;

Seven 720's differently called.
Stedman H. Symonds :—2 I Maurice Symonds 4

"Frederick Leeks

Conducted by s. H. symonds.
'First peal.

LEEDS.
THB YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.

On Thursday, July 31, 1919, in Two Hours and Fourteen Minutes,
At 90, Blackman Lane,

OF

5088

Percy J. Johnson
-James R. Kemp 3—4 |tJoHN Ambler
Composed by Yorxe Green. Conducted by Percy J. Johnson.
Attested by Gborgb A. Jowett.
* First peal on an inside pair. f First peal on handbells.

A PEAL BOB MAIOR, CHANCM ;

W illiam Barton

ROMNEY MARSH GUILD.
AN OUTING TO CROYDON.

On Saturday, August 9th, having received an invitation from
Messrs. Gillett and Johnston to visit their foundry and works, the
members of the Romney- Marsh Guild, to the number of 40, spent an
enjoyable day. Two motor charabancs wero chartered, one starting
from Ashford and tho other from Tenterden, to meet at Maidstone
nt 8.30. After passing through some of the finest scenery in Kent an/l
surrey, the party arrived at the foundry at 11.30, whese they were
received by Mr. Johnston and Mr. Doan. St. Peter's tower was
visited, and soino ringing done on this fine peal of tea in Grandsire,
.Stedman and Plain Bob, Mr. Johnston, Mr. Deaji and Miss E. H.
Turker lending 0. helping hand. Lunch was partaken of at the
foundry, and ot 2.15 the visitors motored off to St. Stephen’s, Clap-
ham Park, and spent a very enjoyable time in ringing and listening
to this most up-to-dato and musical peal. Returning to the foundry,
the visitors found a substantial tea awaiting thom in tho spacious can.
teen connected with the works.

A hearty vote of thanka was accorded to Mr. Johnston for his kind
invitations for his generous hospitality, and for the arrangements to
ring o1t two such fine poalc of bells, and making (from a ringers’ point
of view) a perfect day.—Mr. Johnston, in reply, said ho was pleased
to make his first acquaintance with the members of the Guild, and
was dad if he lias1 been the means of their spending an enjoyable
(lay. Ho then conducted the party over the foundry and works, ex-
plaining tho various processes of bell founding in detail and struck
1 Mmo tunes on three or four differout i>oals which had been cast in
the foundry, and wore awaiting their despatch. This was a splendid
object lesson. At 6.30 the party moved out of Croydon, through War-
lingliam anil Limpsfield to Westerham, whero we ha/l made previous
arrangements for ringing, and whero they were met at the church by
the secretary (Mr. G. R. Selby) and other local ringers. Touches of
Grandsire Triples and Bob Major wero brought round, with a few
rounds for tlie recruits, and after an liour’s ringin? the bells were
lonerod in peal. Home was eventually reaeliod safely about 12.15
after I>eing very sternly reminded of the parable of the foolish virgins
by a man in blue who, however, lei the company off with a caution.
In tlie opinion of all who took part in it this was the I>est outing tne
Guild ha/l ever had or over could havo.
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FARNHAM ROYAL AND ITS BELLS.
REVIVING A DECAYING ANNIVERSARY.

In the mouth of June, 1752, there was cast at tho flourishing village
of Whitechapel a ring of six bells for the village of Farnham Royal
(tenor 12] cwt.). An old parish document mentioned that thero were
four bells there previously. On the completion of the present towor
in 1876 the middle pair of bells was recast and the whole rehung. The
original six had been taken out in 1368, and stored in tbe Rectory
barns, whilst the tower, in a ruinous condition, wa« being demolished,;
so that those bells were not soun'led for c*ght years. Two additional
trobles wore added to commemorate tho Diamond Jubilee of Queen
Victoria in 1897, the restored tower and a new organ being the gift
of a Mr. Dodd, an old resident of the parish, who began life as a
lad at tho plough, and amassed a fortune by the «ollection and dis-
posal of London's dust and refuse. In June, 1877, the local bell
opening festival was observed 01t Whit-Monday, and ringers from
Boyne Hill, Burnham, Slough and London attended, the writer being
one of some half-dozen survivors of a gathering which laid the
foundation of the E. Berks and South Bucks Association, so named
out of courtesy to the Boyne Hill men (and the Rev. A. H. Drum-
mond), who then possessed a new octave; ami to Farnham Royal, with
the Btev. F. S. Marshall, and Messrs. Parkor and Allder. The incum-
bents of each parish took the office of President and hon. secretary
respectively.

o-day the bells and tho steeplekeoper aro yet in evidence, and as
tilo war was practically over, members of the Oxford Diocesan Guild
—which swallowed the oidfjr Association in 1881—decided to revive the
decaying anniversary, and 01t a recent Saturday a friendly prac-
tice was fixed up with the hearty approval of the present Rector (the
Rev. F. M. Hargreaves).

The following (27) answered ‘roll call’ and enjoyed the day in
this beechy district of Bucks by ringing London. Superlative, Double
Norwich, Treble Plain Bob Major, and Oxford, Stedman, and Grand-
sire Triples; a team of fair damsels manning the octave quite un-
aided for a spell, and with one or two newly demobilised men and
visitors kept the bells going at intervals to their mutual satisfaction:
The Misses Fuller. Bateman, Gudgin, Williams, Feltham, Cooper
Wheeler and Wheclor—who rang ‘ Queen's ' in a Royal parish:
Messrs. W. Hewett. F. |. Hairs, Parker, Henley, Bateman. Gut-
teridge. Blackmorc, Mason, Allder, W. C. Mayne (and his handbells).
Pike. Shreeve, Tlojper, Jones. Smith. Leader, Williamson, Fussell and
H. Cox. Tea was provided at tire Crown, the chair being taken by
Mr. T. J. Parker of twelve-part fame, and the vice-chair by Miss F.
Gudgin. An excellent practice with reminders of the dim and distant
past ended in a beautiful summer night's cycle ride home, with feel,
in~s of thanRs to the Rector anj foreman for hospitality and atten-
tion expressed feebly in the form of a ' vote ' after tea.

Two questions arose durine the day, how came 1Royal ' tacked on
to Famham, nnd why eat at the Crown’? OtherR may wish to know,
so here'c the answer:—

Julius Cawsar is said to have erected a hunting box on the Thames at
Windsor. It was fortified by William the Conqueror, and to-day is
known as the Curfew Tower. Most of our early Kings and Queens
hunted the South of Bucks, and this parish became famous for its
royal sport. It is a fairly established reputation that rineers are 1
most loyal and patriotic body, and the churchwardens’ parish account*
all over England and very early press paragraphs from the days of
Charles 1. holp to confirm it. and so *we ' supported the Crown to-day.

BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION
SUCCESSFUL MEETING AT BRENT KNOLL.

A meeting of the Axbridge Deanery bran«li was held on Salttrday
week at Brent Knol'. A glorious August afternoon., a fine peal of six
bells; a gathering of nearly 30 enthusiastic ringers, numbering
amongst them some ladies; a hearty welcome from the Vicar (the Rev.
R T. Gardner) to tlie beautiful Vicarage grounds (one of England's
beauty spots). What, more could a ringer wish for? The proceedings
began with ringing on the fine peal about- 3.45 P.m., and service was
hold in the beautiful old church, conducted by the Vicar, who gave
an impressive address. The members were then generously enter-
tained to tea on the Vicarage lawn by the Rov. and Mrs. Gardner.
The businesR meeting followed, the President of the Branch (Preh.
G. L. Porcher) being in the chair, ami Brent Knoll, Burnham, East
Brent, Mark. Weston-super-Mare, Worle and Borrow towers repre-
sented. Two honorary members and two performing members were
elected, and Worle was selected for the next meeting.—The President
proposed a hearty vote of thanks to the Rev. and Mrs. Gardner for
(lieir vor.v kind hospitality, nnd Mr. lley, in seconding, also thanked
the ladies who had so kindly waited o1t them.—The vote was carried
-ith acclamation! and the Vicar humorously replied. During tne
afternoon and evening touches of Grandsire, Stedman and Plain Bob
were rung on. the bells. Tho afternoon will long live in the memory
of those who wore privileged to take part in the proceedings.
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Tenor Bell, 25J cwt., of the new ring
of Ten at St. Peter’s, Brighton.

ESTIMATES SUEMITTED

For l-ehanging, Retuning ~nd Recast ng

Musical Handbells lu sets, R* Il Roues /Nr

At the Handbell Contest held annually in Manchester the
First Prize for the last 16 years has been awarded to bands
using our bells, andonfourteen of those occasions they have paimd
the Second Prize also
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RINGERS’ OUTINGS.
AMONG THE HEAVY BELLS OF KENT.

After a break of tlnoo years. the Bromley Youths, the ringors at
the <oH Parish Church of~SS. Peter and Paul, resumed their annual
outing, tho venue bein'; the Weald of Kent, with towers containing
some of the heaviest eight bell ponls in tho county. Eleven mem-
bers an<l several friends, including Messrs. W. Smith and F. King,
of Beckenham, and E. F. Pike, of Brookley, loft Bromley South at
5.39 a.m for Headoorn, whero. after a substantial broakfast, the
bells (tenor 2+ cwt.l were raised, and somo capital touches of Grand-
siro, Stedman and Double Norwich woro brought round. The boll*
were well lowered in peal, and a move at once made for Biddonden
via tho Kent nnd East Sussex railway. Arriving at this quaint old
vill&g<\ with its fine church tower, tlio party wore met. by .ir.
Tribe, of Tenterden. nnd Mr. W. Spice, of Tunstall. The ringing in-
cluded Stcdman Triples, Double Norwich, Orandsiro and Bob Major,
in which last named method the Biddonden ringors of tho 18th ren-
tury wore quite proficient, as the poal boards in thc belfry testify.
The bells are a fino old peal, with a splendid tenor of 26 cwt. Thev
were restored a few years ngo but unfortunately the sixth has de
veloped a crack, but. it is hoped to have it recast nt an early (Into
Biddenden was worth tho journey to visit it. Some courses of Triple?
double-handed on tho handbells, muoh to the interest of the locals,
especially tho youngsters who crowded round agano fund whom it i«
safe to assume have heard but little if any handbell clinnee ringing'
brought the Biddendon visit to a close, and the party were soon pack
ed into a smart littlo motor-bus for the next tower on the list—
Tenterden which was the main object of the Journey. A most en-
iovablo ride, and a splendid dinner nt tlie White Lion Hotel, to which
17 sat down, including Mr 0. Tribe who had kindly made the ar-
rangements there. After this everyone declared they felt fit to rin~
the @cwt. tenor to Double Norwich, and a move was made for the
crand old tower, whore some more excellent touches wore rung, in-
cluding the Double Norwich. The visitors agreed that the prni»o
that lias been lavished on Tontcrdon bolls has not been examrernted.
Owing to the very early time of the last, train back to nex»dcorn.
viz. 5.0'clock, the stay nt Tonlordon who nil too brief. n»d it w~~
not. lone before the party realised why it is necessary to start, enrlv
when travelling on the K. and F.S.R. This particular train shut>f~
three times nt each station, and took 11 hours to do the nin* miles
Tt is believed to bo the champion shunting railway of the emmre
TVe«t*»sllv nrrivine nt Hondocrn. who-" tr",. liVo breakfast <»d ring-
ing. had been arranged by Mr. P Hodgkin, it was fon-d ne"ess"r*-
In thtv the most hurriod ™™ tho SwWwW ilips  *1 oTd<"

to fulfil the nrocrramme. by concluding the day’s ringin” t'--' I;»ht
neal at Marden. whero a nleasnnt. evenintr wns si>ent. Stedman
Orandsire Double Norwiol* nmi Treble Boh Moior hein" vlin" with

Mr. D. Hodgkin (who mndo the arrangements therel. nnd Mr. C. Sone.
of Linton. The conducting throughout lhe di>y wns scared hy Messrs.
W. Smith 0. Durling. G. Huxlev and T. Emery. Thnnko nre dno to
Messrs. Hodgkin (2) and Mr. Tribo for the capital arrangements made
nnd to the incumbents of the four churches named for kindly allow-
ing the use of their bella. - T. E.

A SUSSEX OUTING.

The Honfield (Sussex) ringers had their first outing since 124 the
other day. when they visited Lewes and Eastbourne, by motor. \I
the former place they had tho opportunity of ringing on the peal o!
ten at St. John the Baptist’'s, Southovor. where they were met ny
the steeplekeeper, who had tho bells ready for tho visitors. Several
of thc members mndc tlicir first attempt at Stcdmnn Caters, several
course, of which wero brought round in oxcollent style. Beaching
Eastbourne at 1L tho party lind the privilege of ringing on tlio
grand peal of eight at St Saviour’s Church, where a well-struck 504
of Stedman Triples concluded the ringing programme.

The visitors met for both dinner nnd tea, and the rest of the. ay
was spent in enjoying thc attractions of one of the most beautiful
seaside resorts on the south coast. Thanks are accorded to the in-
cumbents of Southovcr. Lewes nnd St. Saviour's. Eastbourne, tor
permission to ring; to tho «teeplekeepers at these churches for meeting
the visitors and having the liells in readiness: nnd also lo Mr. Mnrk-
well, who was responsible for nil the nrrnngements.

OSPRINGE RINGERS’ TRIP.

On Satuiday, July 6th, thc Osprinee ringers on the kind invita-
tion of one of their number, journeyed by brnko to Hernhill, neir
Favcrsham. They were welcomed there by the Vicar, the Rev. Alfred
Clark. After inspecting the church, thev indulged in ringing on the
eight bells in tho tower unitil five o'clock, when an adjournment wnc
n°de to the Red Lion Tnm nnd mi excellent meat te» enjoyed the
Vicar lieing of the party. A tribute wns pnid to tho memory of the
lute Mr. E. E. Forcmnn, of Hemhill. who had for so mnny years
t->ken such a livclv interest in boll ringing, and helped so mnny young
ringers iu tho district, and who had been present on more than one
similar occasion. Further ringing was done during tho ovonincr.
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A SUNDAY EXCURSION.

At Isloworth. on Sunday, July «13tli, ft <iuarter-peal of Stodman
Triples was rung by W. Lidbotter 1, S.- 0. Chandler 2, C. Edwards
3, E. F Colo 4, C. Bird (conductor) 5, P. C. Goddard 6, G. Spencer
7. A. Beckinsalo 8. Afterwards four of tho Isloworth baud, with Mr.
E. P. Cole, journeyed by bus and tram to Reigate. A pleasant liour
was spent with an old rinsing triend, Mr. W. Argent, of ‘' Ye Pan-
ther,” and the party then walked on to RedhiU, whore from the
common magnificent viows wore obtained. Rcaolung 74, Earlswood
Road at 4 o'clock. Mr. and Mrs Dewey had tea awaiting them, and
this, it woes without saying, was thoroughly enjoyed, the hosts being
thanked for thoir kindness. A quarter-peal of Grandsiro Triples at
St. John’s Church was arranged for the evening, the band being com-
pleted by Mr. F. Woodiss. of Kingston, and local men: E. Dewey 1.
A. Beckinsalo 2, T. Beadle 3, E. F. Colo 4, F. Woodiss 5, F. C. God-
dard 6, G. Spencor (conductor) 7, J. Sherlock. 8. Tho visitors ws
to thank tho Rcdliill ringers for kindly placing tho bolls at their
disposal,

FAREWELI-

As a farewell to the Rev. L. E. Richardson, Rector of Shirenowton.
who was shortly Ieavin? for the parish of Tlton, a band of ringers,
members of the Llandaff Diocesan Association, including the conduc-
tors of Chepstow, Caldicot, and All Saints'. Newport, towers, with
others, journeyed lo Shirenewton on Saturday last, and, during the
afternoon and evening, rang Grandsiro and Stodman Doubles nnd Bob
Minor on the church bells. Tea wa9 served during an interval.

Tho bells, a light ring of six, are .very musical, and only recently
wero augmonted from five to six, and the second boll rocast. This was
lhe first time since the augmentation that change ringing had been
done on them. Amongst tho visitors was Mr. .T. H. Shepherd, of
Swindon.

The old fivo were east In 1769 by Evans, of Chepstow, and it is hoped
one day to see the completion of the octavo by the addition of
Iwo others.

GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL ASSOCIATION.
SWINDON BRANCH DONSTG GOOD WORK.

Tho quarterly meeting of the Swindon Branch was held at the
pretty little village of Bishopstone. and was attended by 30 members
of various towers, who fully appreciated a ring Dn the fine real of
eight which came from the well-known Whitechapel Foundry. In-
cidentally it was the last day of the great war, and soon after 3 p.m
the silence of this little village was broken by the music of th«
beautiful bells in methods varying from Plain Bob Major to Double
Norwich, useful practice being obtained. A short service wns held at
St. Mary’s Church, the Rev. Luca., Stubbs officiating. A strawberry
tea, provided by Mr. Stone, was enjoyed on the Vicarage lawn, and
thi business meeting followed, with Mr. Ernest, Bishop, branch presi-
dent, 111 tho chair. Three new members were elected, and it was
ile i/led t> hold t>'e next two practice meetings at Malmesbury and
Wroughton respectively, Ul0 next quarterly meeting to be held al
Chippenham.

A letter was road by the president with reference to the Diocesan
War Memorial to fallen rinpers, but no vote will be taken until the
next quarterly meeting.—The Secretary read gratifying reports of ti-o
two la«t monthly Practice meetings which were held nt Blunsdon and
Castle Eaton, and brought out talent at five nnd six bell towers.—A
vote of thanks wns fieeorded the Vicar for use of bells and the se--
vice and the Rev. L. ctulibs offered the Association a welcome at any
time they cared to pay a visit.

The busines- meeting ove-. there was further ringing, a well-struck
501 nf Stedin'n Triples being included: TI. W. Bishop 1. R. W. Hyn'r
2. T. Robinson 3. T. Ricketts 4. C. Gardner 5, E. Bishop (conductor'
6. S. Palmer 7, J. Durham (Bishopstone) 8.

COMPLIMENTARY DINNER AT NOTTINGHAM

Mr. H. It. Cobbin, who has recently very generously provided St
Peter's, Nottingham, with two new bolls, was entertained to a com-
plimentary dinner at the Welbeck Hotel. There was a very knppy
gathering of ringers nnd church officials, the Rector being in ttio
chair, supported by the churchwardens, Mr. Denison Taylor, of Lough-
borough. an/] tho lato Mr. John Taylor's'only surviving son.  After
an excellent dinner nnd the loyal toast, the senior member, Mr. Geo.
Johnson, proposed the health of the guest of tho evening in very cor-

dial terms, the toast being drunk with musical honours. Mr. Cob-
bin suitably replied, and the Rector referred to Mr. Cobbin's genor-
osity in placing the new ljollg in the tower, a gift which, lie said, was

greatly appreciated.

The delightful musical programme was sustained by the Welbgck
Quartette (Messrs. Warren, Pearce, Coppock and Adkin), and Miss
Nellie Price, the talented daughter of a well-known Bceston ringer,
plnyed the accompaniments. Four ringer* were present who had seen
active service, viz.: Messrs. R. Clifford, F. Blood, G. West nnd T
Coppock, nnd the Vicar offered his hearty congratulations ami the
thanks of the community.
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RINGING EXCURSION IN ESSEX.

With most ringers an enjoyable addition to the fascination of
change ringing is the desirg to visit as many different towers as pos-
sible. Mr. W. J. Nevard, of Great Bentley, Essex, shares this wish,
and lute for some time cast longing eyes on the rings of six bells t
Burnham-on-Crouch and Southminster, but as they nro some 40 miles
from his home, and r.ot easy of reach by rail, he has had to wait
for tho more modern motor. Ilis son (fortunate man!) owns a line-

running 4-«eatcr, in which W. J. Nevard and P. Almond, of Great
Bentley; J. Bowell, of Great Bromley and E. W. Beckwith, of
Coggeshall, travelled to Burnham on Saturday, June 28tli. On ar-

rival there- they found Messrs. P. Chalk and H. Mansfield, who had
kindly cycled from Maldon to make up the-party. The church is-«
fine, long building, paved with glowing red brick, and it is said that
the tower was-originally much higher, but had been blown down
in a gale. However, thero is enough left to hold a tiico going ring
of six bells, 011 which was rung 72Q of Oxford Treble Bob, 720 Double
Court, and 240 Cambridge Surprise.—The Vicar congratulated tho
party c:i tho ringing, which very happily coincided with the signing
of peace.

After a stroll round the charming yachting town and a good tea
the company started for Southminster. The local men wets ringing
call changes when the excursionists arrived, but very kindly handed
over the ropes to the visitors who rang 720 Kent Treble iBob 360
Bob Minor, and a course of Cambridge Surprise. This church con-
tains several Nelson relics, including tlio fine Sheraton writing table
formerly in the cockpit of the Victory.

Best thanks are due to th« Vicars of the two churches for per-
mission to ring, to those who made up the band, and last, but not
'least., to Mr. Nevard for tlitj use of the oar. and for making all ar-

rangements Mr Nevard confesses that his list of Essex towers
visited now stands at 120.

LAVENHAM RINGERS HOME AGAIN.

On Saturday. August 2nd. at Preston., Suffolk, 720 Boll. Minor: R.
J. Poulson 1, P. Poulson 2, L. Poulson 3, F. Boreliam 4, T. Bollocks
5, A. Symonds (conductor) 6. Tho throe first name, are brothers
and with F. Boreham have served in tho army. This was the first 720
on tower bells by tlio ringers of 3rd and 4th, and all belong to Laven-
ham except T. Hollocks. A 720 of Oxford Troblo Bob was also rung
by: T. Symonds 1. IT. Poulson 2. A. Hollocks 3. T. Hollocks 4. 11.
Crick 5. M. J. Poulson (conductor) 6. Il. Poulson. fought in Salonika;
F. Poulson in Egypt; R T and L. Poulson in France.

WAR’'S HANDICAP OVERCOME.

Tho first 720 of Bob Minor rung on the Mis at All Saints’ Church,
Wi iitstable, for upwards of 20 yoarg was mado additionally noteworthy
by the fact that J. Hadlow, who rang "the 2nd. has only one arm.
having lost the other in, the war. Congratulations to him upon hav-
ing so quickly overcome the handicap of his unhappy incapacity. TLi-
720 wa, rur.rj 011 August 5tli, by: H. A. Hopkins (Roval Cumberland
Youths, London>), 1. J. Hndlow 2. F. Hadlow 3, A. Gilbert 4. H. t.il-
bert (conductor) 5, Clarence Hadlow 6.

Afterwards three 120’s of Grandsire Doubles were rung respectively by
C. Hadlow. Il. Gilbert and H. A. Hopkins, nnd in which Miss Kath-
leen Hopkins took part. Great credit is duo to Miss Hopkins for the
miuuior in which she rang, tliis'being her first attempt. She has onlr
learnt to ring a bell since March last.

LONDON SURPRISE MINOR.
To the 'Editor.

Sir,—I| read with interest the account of the meeting at Braintree
of tho Essex Association and its account of the ringers regarding the
1 first 720 of London Surprise ever rung in the Southern Counties ' iu
1883. | should like to state that a 720 of this difficult method was
ning on handbells single-handed at .Tohn Slater’s house on Monday.
February 26th. 1883. The same 720 was also rung on the Parish
Church bells, Glemsford, on Saturday, March 10th, 1883. The band
each time was: John Slater 1. Zachariah Slater 2, Frederick Wells
3. Thomas Oliver Garwood 4. Fredk. Paul Adams 5. Samuel Slater
6. Conducted on both occasions by Samuel Slater. This parish, at
that time, possessed a first-rate band of ringers, and in 1882-3 mado
an attempt to ring the 16 Surprise methods given in the ‘ Clavis.
but after ringing London, Ely, Rochester, Coventry. Cambridge ami
Superlative, the attempt was abandoned. This wa> also the first 720
in this method rung in this district, and | do not fhink.thnt any
720's of it havo been rung anywhere round here except at Preston,
near Lavenliam.—Yours faithfully, TIEO. F. SLATER.

THE J. S. GOLDSMITH TESTIMONIAL.

The fund for this successful and interesting scheme will definitely
close 011 August 31st. 1919.

I shall be glad if those who Stl|| have lists will kindly forward the
amounts in hand to me on or before the above date. T hope alt
rinffera will do their best to bring the total to a level figure.

JAMES GEORGE, Hon. Secretary and Treasurer.

13, Dolman Road, Aston, Birmingham
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GILLETT & JOHNSTON,

The 17 cwt. tenor of the new ring of eight cast by

Messrs. Gillett & Johnston, and hung by them at

St. Stephen's, Clapham Park, and opened on the
7th of June, 1919.

CROYDOIN, SURREY
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A DORSET AND SOMERSET TOUR.

A DAY AMONG HEAVY BELLS.

On July 5th, the Wyke Regis ringers held their peace outing
Accompanied by the Hector (the Rev. E. D0 B. Thurston), Mr. Russ
(organist), Mr. W. P. Rose (churchwarden), tlie sidesmen and ilneo
members of the choir, making a party of 23, a-circular tour in the
' Wessex ' 011 a 32 h.p. touring motor charabanc was enjoyed. Lcav.
iug Wyke Regis at 7 P.m., and calling at Dorchester, they picked up
Mr. Longman (churchwarden) and three of St. Peter’s ringers. Tha
road was taken to Sherborne, passing through Ccrne Abbas, ' situ-
ated in the Cerne Valley in a gap in the chalk hills, with its fine
church and lofty tower, which it is hoped in th§ near future will
contain a fine peal of eight bells instead <f tho five old ones which are
now unringable. The Cerne Giant, cut in chalk o1t Giant Hill, called
for no little attention. It represents in truly colossal proportions a
figure of a man that would have caused the great Frederick to sing
a *Nuno Dimittis." it ig 180ft. in height, and the club in the right
hand is 120ft. long. Passing through some lovely country, rich
in stately mansions for which Dorset is noted, Sherborne was reach-
ed at 9 o'clock. For 370 years this was a.Cathedral City, and took
its place as tlio second city in the kingdom of Wessex. Permission
had been obtained to visit the famous Sherborne School, where it is
said Alfred the Great began his education; tliis wa* very much en-
joyed and timo would not permit of a touch on the beautiful Abbey
Peal (tonor 47 cwt., B flat). The party resumed the road to Queen
Camel (where they made a 'dodge ' into Somerset), which possess
a very fine church and equally fine tower, whioh contains a grand
peal of six bells reputed as the heaviest six iu England, the tenor
being 37 cwt. Here the bells were soon set going to Grandsire
Doubles, and a course of Bob Minor was also brought round in fine
style. The general remark was: ‘ What a Brand peal of eight this
would make!” Next, at Marston Magna, the gix bells were set going
to Grandsire Doubles™ and 12.30 found the party at Yeovil, where,
after lunching at Maynard's Restaurant, a visit was paid to the belfry
of the Parish Church, with its magnificent Peal of ten, tenor 45 cwt..
where some nice touches of Triples were brought round. A move was
next made to East Coker (eight bells), aivl touches of Triples were
rung, ami then the company followed the byways to West Coker
where there was just room for the charabanc to pass, the overhanging
bushes meeting each other. Here it did not require the conductor
to call bobe, for it was 1 bolls ' and ‘ dodges ' until the main road to-
CrewVcrne was reachcd. Unfortunately, through unforeseen circum-
stanccs, ringing was not possible at West Coker, which the Rector at
that place very much regretted. At Crewkerne tea was awaiting the
party at the George Hotel, and afterwards the Rector proposed a
vote of thanks to the hon. secretary, and complimented him on his
great success in arranging the tour. This was endorsed, by Mr. Russ,
ami generally acknowledged.

Tracks were then maffe for the church, which contains some fine
architecture, and a central tower with it, splendid peal of eight bells
with tenor 22 cwt. For over an hour tho bells sent forth their
niusie to the tunc of Grandsire Triples, this being the last tower for
tho day, throughout- which the conducting was principally in the
handi of Mr. L. Wiffon. Wyke Regis wag Beached at 10 p.m. at- ' the
end of a perfect day.

ESSEX RINGER’'S DEATH.

(0<i Sunday, August 10th, at St. George's Church, Great Bromley,
Essex, 720 Bob Minor, for morning service: 1*. Alinnlid (Tliorrington,
Essex) 1, Fredk. Bowell (Ipswich) 2, Alfred Bowell (Ipswich) 3, fc.
llady (Tliorp-lo-Soketi) 4, J. Bowell (Great Bromley) 5, W. J. Nevard
(Great Bentley), oouductor, 6. This was rung with tke bells fully
muffled as a last token of respect to Mr. Jos. Taylor, a former ringer
at the church, ami who was interred during the week. After morning
service, with the bells * open,’ 720 Oxford Treble Bob Minor: 1.
Almond 1, Fredk. Bowell 2, W. Clover (Tliornham Magna) 3, E. Eady
4, A. Bowell 5 W. J. Nevard (conductor) 6.

EAST HARLING RINGER DEAD.

The band at East llarling, Norfolk, have lost a pleasant companion
and a safe ringer by tbe death of Mr. Alfred Newsou, and as a last
tribute of respect a half-muffled 720 of Bob Minor has been rung by:
T. Stagg 1, C. Carter 2, A. Macro 3, W, Eaglinc 4, W. Everett 5,
T. Fitv.john (conductor) 6.

NEWPORT, ISLE OF WIGHT.—On Sunday, 13th July, for Matins,
a quarter-peal of Gnuidsiro Triples, iu 53 mins.: J. Sinunonds 1. W.
Johnson 2, W. Upton 3, W. Scott 4, A. Callaway 5, H. Phillips 6, tt
Jennings (conductor) 7, J. Leal 8. Rung as a birthday coinplimont
to tho ringer of tho third. For evensong, 408 Stedman Triples.
Ringing takes place oach Thursday everting, from 7.30 p.m. to 9 p.m.
Also Sundays at 10 a.ui. and 5.45 p.m. Visitors liourtily welcomed.
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NOTICES.

The E ditorial Office Of the ‘Ringing W orld, to
which all communications should be sent, is 9, Com-
R oad, W oking.

‘The Ringing World ' can be obta'fned by placing an
order with a Newsagent, or it will be sent direct from
the Editorial Office post free for 2/6 per quarter, 10/- per
year.

ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS.—
Established 1637.—Meetings will be held at St. John's,
Hackney, on Angust 25th, at 7.45 p.m., and :St. Giles',
Cripplegate, on the 26th at 7.30 p.m. Business meeting
afterwards at Headquarters.— William T. Cockerill, Hon.
Sec., 32, Edgeley Road, Clapham, S.W .4.

WARWICKSHIRE GUILD.— The annual meeting

mercial

will be held at Bishop Ryder’s, Birmingham, on
Saturday, August 23rd. Bells available from 2.30.
Committee meeting at 3,45; service, 4.30. Tea
can be provided in Bishop Ryder’s Schools at a

reasonable charge at 5 o'clock. Business meeting after tea.
The bells of St. John's, Deritend (8), and St. Chad’s R.C.
(8) will be available during the evening.—Joseph H. White,
Hon. 8ec., 59, George Eliot Road, Coventry. '

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.-Blackburn Branch.—
The annual branch meeting will be held at the Blackburn
Parish Church on Saturday, August 23rd. Bells ready
3 o'clock. Meeting 6.30 p.m.—J. Watson, Branch Sec.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Rossendale Branch.
—The next meeting will be held at St. Mary’s, Rawten-
stall, on Saturday, August 23rd. Bells ready at 3 o’clock ;
meeting at 6.30 prompt. Business important, re annual
meeting.—J. H. Haydock, Branch Sec.

HEREFORD DIOCESAN GUILD (Brecon District).
—The first quarterly meeting of the above district will be
held at Talgarth on Saturday, August 23rd. Bells (6)
available at 3 p.m. -Tea at 6 p.m., free to members.
Business meeting after tea. A hearty invitation is ex-
tended to ringers to make this meeting a success.—J. P.
Hyett, Dist. Sec., 2, Dulas Terrace, Hay, Bieconshire.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Tonbridge Dis-
trict.—The next meeting of this district will be held at
Marden on Saturday, August 30th. Tower open at 3;
Service at 5; tea (by kind invitation of the Vicar) at the
Vicarage after service, followed by business meeting. Half
travelling expenses up to 2/- each will be paid to members
attending. All members intending to be present must notify
the District Sec. not later than Tuesday, August 26th.—
W. Lather, Hon. Dis. Sec., 11, Dudley Road, Tunbridge
Wells.

ISHAM, NORTHANTS, SOCIETY.—In conjunction
with the Ladiis’ Guild.—A summer ringing festival will be
held at Isham on Saturday, August 30th, at 4 p.m. (ring-
ing from 2.30)/ All ringcs and supporters of the Ladies’
Guild cordially invited to be present, but those who intend
to do so are requested to inform Mr. W. T. Wilson, The
Pines, Isham, of their intention, so that sufficient provender
may be prepared.

LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Late the St.
James' Society (Estab. 1824).—Southern District —A
meeting for practice will be held on Saturday, August 30th,
at All Saints’, Fulham. Tower open from 4 p.m. to Sp.m.
—F. A. Smith, Hon. Sec., 14, Oxford Avenue, Merton
Park, S.W.19.
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KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Rochester Dis-
trict.—Annual district meeting will be held at Rochester
on Saturday, August 30th. Tea at The Tea Table, High
Street, at 5.30, followed by business meeting. The Cathe-
dral bells will be available from 3 p.m., also St. Margaret’s
and Frin'dsbury bells. Will thjse who wish to have tea
kindly let me know not later than Wednesday, August
27th.  9d. each will be charged for tea. All ringers are
welcome. Hope to see the younger members of the
Exercise.—E. A. G. Allen, Hon. Sec., 77, Bill Street Road,
Frindsbury, Rochester.

DUDLEY AND DISTRICT GUILD.—The next
quarterly meeting of this guild will be held at Penn, near
Wolverhampton, Staffs., on Saturday, August 30th. Bells
available from 3 o’clock ; ssrvice in church at 4.30 which
will be conducted by the Vicar, the Rev. E. Hartill, M.A.
who will also preside at the business meeting afterwards.
—Herbert Sheppard, Hon. Sec., 113, Himley Road,
Dudley.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION__ Prestwich, Man-
chester.—Dedication of the re-cast peal on August 30th.
The service will take place at 4 p.m. conducted by the Rev.
H. J. Elsee (President). All ringers cordially invited.—R.
W. Bent.

CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.—Stockport Branch. _

—The next meeting will be held at Ivnutsford on Saturday.
August 30th.—Rev. A. T. Beeston, Hon. Sec., New Mills

WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.—WinchesFer
District.—A meeting will be held at Alresford on Saturday,
August 30th. Bells available from 2.30 p.m. Tea in
Parish Room at 5.15.—Jas. W. Elkins, District Secretary,
20, Culver Road, Winchester.

OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD. — North Bucks
Branch.—A ringing meeting will be held at Buckingham
on Saturday, August 30th. Bells (8) available from 3 p.m.
All ringers are welcome.—W . Bear, Hon. Sec., 19, Albert
Street, Bletchley.

GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL DIOCESAN ASSO-
CIATION.— Wotton-under-Edge Branch.— The next
meeting will be held at Tytherington on Saturday, August
30th. Bells from 3 p.m. Service 4.30. Teaat5 p.m.—
W. A. Lewis, Branch Hon. Sec., Ham, Berkeley, Glos.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.— Preston Branch.
—The annual meeting of the above branch will be held at
Samlesbury on Saturday afternoon. August 30th, 1919.
Tower open for ringing at 3 o'clock. Meeting in the
school at 5.30.—A. E. Woadhouse, Branch Sec.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.— Any suggestions
for the annual meeting, and nominations for Vice-President,
Ringing Secretary, and two Auditors, to be sent in to the

G:neral Secretary by September ist.—W. H. Shuker,
Gen. Sec., 106, Bank Street, Clayton, Manchester.
YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Eastern District.—

A quarterly meeting will be held at Beveiley on Saturday,
Sept. 6th. Bells available at the Minster from ! o’clock
till 8.30 p.m.; service at the Minster 5 p.m.; tea 5.30.
Business meeting after tea. Tea will be provided at 1/-
each to those only who notify Mr. W. Gibson, 3, Brithunus
Place, Long Lane, Beverley, not later than the first post,
Sept. 2nd— W. Hinton, Hon. District Sec., 50, Volta St.,
Selby.

THE LADIES' GUILD.— Midland District.— The
quarterly meeting of the above will be held at Solihull on
Saturday, September 6th. Bells (10) available at 3.30.
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Service in the church at 5.30. Tea at 6.15, free to
members, others is. each; to be followed by the business
meeting. Will all intending to be present please notify
me not later than Wednesday, September 3rd ? Gentle-
men cordially invited.— S. Pigott, 41, Cemetery Road,
Smethwick.

SOCIETY OF ROYAL CUMBERLAND YOUTHS.—
Meetings for practice: St.Martin’sfirst Monday in the month

at 7.30 p.m.; second Saturday, St. Bride’s, 5 p.m.; third
Monday, Shoreditch, 7.30 p.m.—11. J. Bradley, Hon. Sec.
MEMORIAL TO THE LATE BERTRAM

PREWETT AND ROBERT STAVERT.—It has been
decided to place a Tablet in Bushey Church to record the
half-muffled peal rung in memory of these two Bushey
ringeis who gave their lives for their country. Subscrip-
tions thankfully received by Mr. F. Edwards, Hon. Sec.,
24, Glencoe Road, Bushey, Herts.

PEAL BOOKS.—Price 3s., post free 3/6. Peals writ-
ten in at 3d. per page. Prices for entering peals in Asso-
ciation official peal books upon application.—J. Beams,
West Ewell, Epsom. N

SITUATIONS VACANT.

WANTED, a Good Storekeeper, Bodymakers, Trimmers
and Painters. Top wages paid. — Wilton Carriage
Co., 107, Waddon New Road, Croydon.

CTTTHATTHXm WAWTRnN

SITUATION WANTED AS MANAGER, Managing
Clerk or Book Keeper, thoroughly understands keep-
ing accounts for Chartered Accountants, can produce
balance sheet; life experience corn, coal and feeding
stuffs trade, good references. Instructor and con-
ductor in standard methods on 8, 10 and 12 bells.—
George E. Symonds, Framlingham, Suffolk.

Edith Lady Auckland wishes to recommend Wm. Wenban
as GARDENER (head working, where three or more
are kept); thorough practical life experience in all
branches ; excellent references ; age 33 ; married when
suited. Change ringer, upon any number of bells,
including Stedman, Double Norwich and Superlative.
—Apply .Wm. Wenban, Seal Chart, Sevenoaks.

HANDBELLS FOR SALE.

FOR SALE, set 19 HANDBELLS, size E 20 in four
Sharps, by Shaw Bradford, splendid condition. What
offers 2—E. Brown, 153, Corporation Road, Grimsby.

MISCELLANEOUS.

STANTON-BY-DALE.—On Saturday, July 26th, at St. Michaels
and All Angels' Church, 720 Kent Treble* Bob Minor: F. Blood 1,
Lilian Willson 2, E. C. Goboy 3, T. H. Kirby 4, A. Harrison 5, J.
F. George 6.

WORKSOP.—Ou July 28tli, oit tlio occasion of a visit by Messrs. E.
Maurice Atkins (Northanfcs) and Leonard Mason (Leicester); 224 Bob
Major, 210 Grandsire Triples, 228 Kent Major, 280 Union Triples, 120
Sledman Doubles and 336 College Single Major by the following:
Maurico li. Atkins, L. Mason, Il. Haigh, T. Bartholomew, A. Johnson,
ex-Sergt. W. II. Johnson, V.O., ] Wilson, W. Kol>erts, E. Clark, &
Eastland A. Beck and G. Hardwick.

ISLEWORTH, MIDDLESEX.—On July 25th. for special service, a
quarter-pcal of Stedman Triples: 1I. W. Lidbetter 1, Il. Chandler 2,
T. Beadlo 3, C. Bird 4, R. Holloway 5, G. Silencer 6, C. Hunt (conduc-
tor) 7, A. Sheard 8

WOOLWICH.—At St. Mary’s Church, 011 July 19th, a quarter-peal
of Grandsire Triples, in 50 mins.: E. Pollard 1, F. Groves 2, ".
Watsliorn 3, N. North 4, 11. Bickford 5. W. Wellington 6, W. Ald-
ridge (conductor) 7, H. McCall© 8.

SELBY ABBEY.—On Sunday, July 20th, for evening service, a
quarter peal of Grandsire Triples: A. C|y0r1 J Jackson 2, B. Storr

W. A. Hall 4, 1I. S. ilorley 5 W. llintou 6, F. Cryer (conductor) 7,
R Moate (first quarter) 8.
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GUILDFORD, SURREY. — On Sunday, July 20th, at St. Nicolas'
Churoli, a quarlor-peal of Grandsiro Triples: G. Gibbs 1, Pie. H. E.

-
Watfou.,, A.&O., 2, a Etheridge 3, G. W. Skeor (first quarter) 4. G. I I n
ThompBott 5, E. Radden 6, T. W. Radford (conductor) 7, S. Radford eux I S
and 0. Heath 8.
LIST OF PUBLICATIONS $ -Ial I IeS’ tu-,

to be obtained Post Free from the Hon. Librarian :
REY. C. W. 0. JENKYN, Broadlands, CaYershara, Reading

ON THE PRESERVATION OF BELLS ., CL
GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS 5
MODEL RULES FOR AN ASSOCIATION....cccoviviiiiiiins 3
3
6
9

MODEL RULES FOR A LOCAL COMPANY ...
RULES AND DECISIONS OF THE COUNCIL..cuue
LEGITIMATE METHODS (Doubles, Minor, Triples)

COLLECTION OF PEALS—section | (Odd-Bell Treble-

Dominated Methods) ..o 10
COLLECTION OF PEALS—section Il (Plain Bob and
Double Oxford.Bob) . 9

COLLECTION OF PEALS—section IIl (Double Norwich) 1 0

BELL ROPES
Jdn Astley & S

LIMITED, -

COVENTRY.

MAKERS SINCE 1730.

CHURCH BELLS SINGLY OR

Please send your enquiries. ’
SATISFACTION GUARANTEED.  Bell Frames in Cast Iron, Steel
and Oak.

JOHN TAYLOR & CO, Bells tuned on the latest Im-

proved principles initiated by
the late Canon Simpson.

Bellfounders

AND

cevmanasts CASTLE GREEN,

LOUGHBOROUGH,
LEICESTERSHIRE. - BRISTOL———
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JOHN WARNER & SONS - s ok s
LIMITED, 1
PROVED IN THE RINGING OF THE
WORLD’S RECORD PEAL.
mm ad THB SAMB BXCBLLENT QUALITY AS
BBFORB THB WAR. SEND YOUR
ORDERS AND LET US CONVINCE YOU.
- JOHN PRITCHARD,
e Swan Street
f th )
THE SPITALFIELDS BELL FOUNDRY, Sole Maker LOUGHBOROUGH.
L Established over a HUNDRED YEARS.
SPELMAN STREET.
ni for Pr n ion
LONDON, E.l. U que (O] esentation,

An Inkstand in the design of aWell-shaped Bell
By Royal Warrant to H.M. King George V.

O ESTABLISHED 1763. 0

The Jasper Snowdon Series.

itOPE-BIGHT. Is. 6d.; lixkh ed. 160 pages; Imt« Plai* Bob, com-

mencing on E\hree bells. . . . This charming model in Solid Hall Marked 8ilyer
URANDEbS'tICIH- 3>, |8 U fﬁomj ?I_‘:]J 6 p%ﬁ ;t con;menct)mg on ire will make a moet appropriate and useful Gift. -—eeeeee-
ells; complaU wi e Thompson Charts, otc., eto. N : . L
STANDARD METHODS 6th Edition Now Ready, 8s, Bd. Diamet It Cgﬂ.be s%p_plled é’.‘. . fgg!!owmg_mzes;m_ 5i
BTEDMAN. 2« Bd.; 275 pages, by the Bev. C. D. P. Davies, M.A, Jlameter in. 2[in. 3jin. In.. 4. In. oimn.
with bii appendix by 8ir Arthur Heywood, Bark., etc., eto. Price ... 16/- 22/6 28/6 35/- 45/- 55/- 67/6
TREBLE BOB. _Part l. Is. Bd.; second_ed.; with appendlx; 100 Monogram or |nscripti0ns Engraved at Moderate Charges
closely printed pages. Part Il., suited tor Conductors only;
very scarce; 2s. ljd.; E3fl psges. 9 .
DOUBLE NORWICH 0. B. Major. At present out of print. J . \I’/] LT I\i/ly iTJ JI IT I IIDi GOIdsmSIitR/eargr?,]ith

SURPRISE PEALS. Cambridge, Superlative and Londom; compiling.
All post free, on receipt of postal order, from

Mrs. LAURA SNOWDON, Cartmel, Lancashire.

W O KIKTG

(MAKER OF THE RINGERS BADGE.)

THOMAS POBLE & SON, Church Bell-
TAUNTON.—Bells Hung on the

H :
A I_ F R E D B OW E I_ I_ y mggtg:osproved principles Old Bells Be-cast,

New Bells supplied, Ropes of the best make.

GHURGH BELL FOUNDER’ Ellacombe’s t himing Apparatus fixed, Hand

bells in sets Chromatic or Diatonic

IpSWICH THE BADCE OF THE CRAFT

A Beautifully Executed

JOHN «'*Milit & SONS RINGERS" PENDANT

Midland Clock Works, A
In Oold, Silver or Bronze.

DERBY Specially Suitable for Gifts.
Telegraphic Adtlrcss- Prices, Gold (9 carat) 30/-, Silver 6/6
"TC||00,1‘<S, SDG%rby-" Bronze 2/9 (post free).
el. No. _ )
cohaers or crocks ano ] COMBER, Goldsmith and Jeweller,
Beverley Minster, Selby Abbey, Truro I'KLFPHONI >171 WOKIHG w [¢] K I K T P

Cathedral, Thurles Cathedral, Trinity College, Cam-
bridge, Belfast Assembly Hall, Magdalen College, Oxford, i . .
ami many others to Lord rjrinilhorpo’s designs.  Tn 1897, Printed for th* Prolatetors by the Woodbridte Frees. Ltd., Guild
« Writingl to the Vitar of Minchinhampton, Lord Grinithorpe said —"Sinitl; fard, aad Published by The Rolls House Puhllahtec Co.. Ltd. Bream»
1 LMitbv will clock you in the be«t way and as near eternity as oossibU. Loa*». 1.0. I ' n



